Agricultural Societies Program #106, Provincial Bldg., 4709 – 44 Avenue, Stony Plain, AB, T7Z 1N4 www.agriculture.alberta.ca

Cardston Agricultural Society Box 1051 Cardston, AB T0K 0K0

Dear: Carol Wilson,

RE: AG SOCIETY BYLAWS

Thank you for updating your bylaws. I have reviewed your submission and find the bylaws consistent with the *Agricultural Societies Act* of Alberta.

Please find attached to this letter, the copy of your bylaws, accepted and approved by Agriculture, Forestry and Rural Economic Development.

A "Bylaw Revision Cover Letter" is also included to assist you when updating your Society's bylaws in the future.

Sincerely,

Colin Gosselin

Senior Project Coordinator

Enclosures



Classification: Protected A

AGRICULTURAL SOCIETY
PROGRAM

JUN 15 2022

APPROVED

COLLA Gossella Sr. Project Coord.

ALBERTA ASSOCIATION OF AGRICULTURAL SOCIETIES

Cardston

Recommended Best Practice

Agricultural Society Bylaws

This sample set of bylaws has been developed by the Alberta Association of Agricultural Societies

Highlighted areas <u>REQUIRE</u> discussion and decision by your Board prior to presentation to

Membership.

January 2020

Agricultural Society Bylaws

Revised 14/03/2022

I. Definitions:

In these bylaws,

- a) "Act" means the Agricultural Societies Act and Regulations of Alberta;
- b) "Audit" means an examination and adjustment of accounts by an auditor;
- c) "Auditor" means an individual who meets the requirements for preparation of the financial statement as per the regulation and is not a director of the Society;
- d) "Society" means the Cardston Agricultural Society
- e) "Board" means the board of directors of the Society;
- f) "Bylaws" means the Bylaws of this Society as amended
- g) "Director" means the Director as defined in the Act;
- "Executive Committee" means the President, Vice President, Second Vice President and Treasurer of the Society;
- "Special General Meeting" means any meeting of the Membership called outside of the Annual General Meeting.
- j) "Special Resolution" means a resolution passed by a majority of not less than 75% of the votes cast at a General Meeting of which not less than 21 days written notice specifying the intention to propose the resolution as a Special Resolution has been given;
- k) "Immediate family members" mean related members of a family living in the same residence;
- "Real property" means land, buildings on land, fences, and fixtures. Fixtures include shelves that are drilled into the wall

II. Objectives:

As stated in the Agricultural Societies Act of Alberta article three: "The object of a society is to encourage improvement in agriculture and enhanced quality of life for persons living in the community by developing educational programs, events, services and facilities based on needs of the community."

Further specific objectives include, but shall not be limited to:

The object of Cardston Agricultural society is to encourage improvement in agriculture and enhanced quality of life for persons living in the community by developing educational programs, events, services and facilities based on needs of the community.

The Cardston Agricultural Society will accomplish this through various activities such as community fairs, rodeo, gymkhana's, farmers market, riding clubs, heritage and cultural events, community youth programs, community beautification, and 4-H.

III. Annual General Meetings:

- 1. Annual meetings of the Society must, within 120 days after the conclusion of each fiscal year of the Society, be held on a day and at an hour and place decided by the Board.
- 2. The primary purpose of the annual meeting of the Society is to do the following:
 - a. To review and approve financial statements and other pertinent reports;
 - b. To elect Directors
- 3. The following shall be the order of business at annual meetings of the Society:
 - a. Call to order
 - b. Determination of quorum
 - c. Reading minutes of the previous annual or general meeting;
 - d. Addresses and reports of officers;
 - e. Reports of committees;
 - f. Unfinished business;
 - g. New business;
 - h. Addresses and discussions;
 - i. Election of directors;
 - i. Adjournment
- 4. The directors shall present to the annual meeting the following reports and statements relating to the Society's financial year that has just ended:
 - a. A report of the directors' activities in that year;
 - b. A financial statement prepared in accordance with the regulations;
 - c. A report listing and giving a brief description of each activity carried out by the Society in that year;
 - d. A report on the implementation of the previous year's business plan;
 - e. The minutes of the previous annual general meeting, for the purpose of being adopted by the society;
 - f. For every committee of the society, a report of the committee respecting its activities during the past year.

IV. Special General Meetings:

- A special general meeting of the Society may be called at any time by the Board when the Board considers it necessary or advisable.
- 2. The Board must call a special general meeting of the Society when requested to do so by at least ten (10) of the members
- 3. A request under subsection IV (2) must be in writing and state clearly the nature of the business to be transacted at the meeting
- 4. Where the Board receives a request in accordance with subsections IV(2) and IV(3),
 - a. If the Board does not issue a call for the meeting within 14 days from the day of receiving the request, or;
 - b. If the meeting called is not to be held within 60 days from the day of the Board receiving the request,

the members making the request, or any other ten (10) or more of the members, may call a meeting of the Society.

V. Notice of Meetings:

- The Board or members calling a general meeting of the Society must give at least 14 days public notice
 of the meeting
 - a. By mailing or Email to each member of the Society, at the members address/email last registered in the office of the Society, a notice stating the hour, day and place of the meeting, or;
 - b. By advertising the hour, day and place of the meeting in a newspaper circulating throughout the Society's locality
 - c. Public notice must be provided for the Annual General Meeting
- If the addition or repeal of or amendment to any provision of the Bylaws of the Society or its memorandum of Society is to be proposed at the meeting, This would considered a Special Resolution and the intent of the proposed change must be included in the notice of meeting.
- 3. Notwithstanding section IV(1), the directors shall provide a minimum of 21 days notice if the meeting is called for the purpose of selling, purchasing, mortgaging, leasing for over one year or to otherwise dispose of any real property owned by the Society. This is also considered a Special Resolution.

VI. Quorum:

- 1. At a meeting of the Society ten (10) members, constitutes a quorum for the transaction of business at a general meeting of the Society.
- 2. Five (5) directors, constitutes a quorum for the transaction of business at a meeting of the Board.
- 3. The president cancels the general meeting if a quorum is not present within one-half (1/2) hour after the time set. If cancelled, the meeting is rescheduled for one (1) week later at the same time and place. If a quorum is not present within one-half (1/2) hour after the set time of the second meeting, the meeting will proceed with the Members in attendance.

VII. Voting:

- At a general meeting of the Society, a majority vote of the member's casting votes may decide all questions, except when a Special Resolution is required.
- 2. Each membership in good standing is allowed one vote on any question.

- 3. No member may vote by proxy.
- 4. At the approval of the Board, alternative methods of voting may be acceptable.

VIII. Composition and election of Board:

- The Board of a Society must consist of nine (9) directors. One (1) Director shall be the appointed Town of Cardston Council Representative, One (1) Director may be appointed for the County of Cardston if they so desire.
- 2. Any voting member in good standing or the representative of a corporation that is a member in good standing is eligible to be elected as a director.
- Candidates for election to the office of director must be nominated openly at a general meeting of the Society.
- 4. At each annual general meeting, voting members elect three (3) directors; each serving a term that ends at the close of the third annual general meeting following the annual general meeting at which these directors were elected.
- 5. Subject to subsection VIII(4), the term of office of a director is three (3) years.
- 6. Retiring directors are eligible for re-election. Directors may serve up to three (3) consecutive terms and must take one (1) year off before being eligible to run again as a director.

IX. Powers and Duties of the Board:

- The Board is to direct and supervise the business of the Society and may exercise all the powers of the Society that are not required to be exercised by the membership in a general meeting.
- 2. The Board may appoint an executive committee and prescribe the committee's duties.
- 3. The Board will develop a budget to present for information to the membership at the annual meeting.
- The Board shall be responsible for providing policy, procedures and terms of reference to all committees
 of the Society.
- 5. Directors shall serve on a voluntary basis without remuneration by the Society for their directorship. Board approved expenses will be reimbursed after Board approval.
- 6. No one (1) individual will carry more authority than another unless operating within Board approved Policies

X. Duties of the Officers and Secretary of the Society:

- 1. President
 - a. Supervises the affairs of the Board;
 - b. When present, chairs all meetings of the Society, the Board, and the Executive Committee;
 - c. Is an ex-officio member of all Committees;
 - d. Acts as the spokesperson for the Society;
 - e. Is a member of the Executive Committee;
 - f. Ensures new Board members orientation is completed within 60 days of their being elected or appointed;
 - g. Carries out other duties assigned by the Board.

2. Vice-President

- a. Presides at meetings in the President's absence.
- b. Replaces the President at various functions when asked to do so by the President or the Board;
- c. Is a member of the Executive Committee;
- d. Carries out other duties assigned by the Board.

3. Second Vice-President

- Presides at meetings in the President's and Vice-President absence. If the Second Vice-President is absent, the Directors elect a Chairperson for that meeting;
- b. Replaces the President and Vice-President at various functions when asked to do so by the President, or the Board
- c. Is a member of the Executive Committee.
- d. Carries out other duties assigned by the Board

4. Treasurer

- Ensures all monies paid to the Society are deposited into a chartered bank or institution as directed by the Board of Directors;
- Makes sure a detailed account of revenues and expenditures is presented to the Board as requested;
- c. Presents the Society's records to the designated accountant for review and preparation of a review engagement statement;
- Makes sure a review engagement statement of the Society is prepared and presented to the annual general meeting;
- e. Is available at the annual meeting at least one hour prior to the meeting to receive membership fees for the ensuing year;
- f. Prepare the necessary documentation required for application for any grants that may be available to the Society and submit before deadlines;
- g. Is a member of the Executive Committee and:
- h. Carries out other duties assigned by the Board.

5. Secretary

- a. Attends all meetings of the Society, the Board and the Executive Committee;
- b. Keeps accurate minutes of these meetings;
- c. Notifies the membership and directors of meetings as required by the bylaws;
- d. Receive and respond to all correspondence as directed by the Board;
- e. Makes sure a record of names and addresses of all members of the Society is kept;
- f. On or before the 15th of February each year return to Alberta Agriculture and Forestry (AF), the annual return documentation required by the Act including but not limited to: a list of directors and officers elected at the annual meeting for the ensuing year; a report of the year's activities signed by 2 directors; a signed copy of the financial statement approved by the membership and prepared by a designated accountant; a copy of the most recent annual general meeting minutes; a copy of the minutes of the 2nd most recent annual general meeting, as adopted at the most recent annual general meeting, signed by 2 directors of the society, evidence that society achieved quorum at the most recent annual general meeting and address of the registered office of the Society.
- g. Carries out other duties assigned by the Board.

XI. Meetings of the Board:

- At the first meeting of the newly elected Board after each annual meeting of the Society, the Board is to meet and elect officers from its own number. Election process must be agreed upon by the Board and set in policy.
 - a. A chairman or president, and:
 - b. A vice-chairman or vice-president, and:
 - c. A treasurer

and any reference in these bylaws to the chairman or vice-chairman is to be read as also referring to a president or vice-president respectively. At each meeting at which a chairman is elected, the Board must appoint a secretary

- 2. The secretary may, but need not, be director or a member.
- 3. The Board must hold an in person meeting not less than once every three (3) months and subject to subsection XI(1); the Board may hold other meetings on days and at places and times decided on by the Board. Additional meetings may take place by participation in person, telephone, video conference, or other suitable methods agreed upon by the board.
- 4. The secretary shall give each director at least one (1) week notice of all regular meetings of the directors.
- 5. The chairman must call an emergency meeting of the Board on the written request of a majority of the directors or if the chairman considers it to be necessary.
- 6. The secretary must give each director one (1) hours' notice of an emergency meeting,
 - a. Stating the time and place/method at which it is to be held, and;
 - b. Stating, in general terms, the nature of the business to be transacted at the meeting.
- 7. A meeting will be deemed emergency if there is an urgent matter that must be resolved before the next regular scheduled meeting. ie; safety issues, human resources, legal, emergency.
- 8. Notwithstanding this section, if all the directors are present an official meeting may take place, it is deemed to have been properly called whether or not the notice of the meeting has been given or properly given.

XII. Proceedings at Board meetings:

- 1. Five (5) directors, constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at a meeting of the Board.
- 2. The chairman may vote on any question, but having done so, the chairman does not have a casting vote in the event of a tie. All other directors have one vote unless there is a conflict of interest.
- 3. If there is not a majority in favour of a motion, the motion is lost.

- At the meeting of the Board held before the annual meeting of the Society, the directors are to adopt a report covering all the activities of the Society for the preceding year for presentation to the annual meeting.
- 5. Minutes must be taken at each meeting and approved as part of the following meeting.

XIII. Vacating a director's office:

 Where a director fails to attend three (3) consecutive meetings of the Board of which the director has been duly notified, the director's office may be declared vacant by the Board if the director's absence has not been explained to the satisfaction of the Board.

2. Where

- a. A director, or:
- b. A corporation whose representative is a director.

ceases to be a member of the Society, the office of that director is to be declared vacant by the board.

- 3. Where a director's office is vacated under this section, the Board may forthwith fill the vacancy by appointing another member of the Society to fill the position until the next AGM. The appointed director is eligible to run for the position at an open election by the membership to fill the vacant position to the end of the original director's term.
- The Board, at a special meeting of the Board called for that purpose, may suspend a member's membership in accordance with Section XXIII.

XIV. Committees

- 1. Standing or adhoc committees may be established or disestablished by the Board.
- 2. Each committee will have at least one director who will act as the liaison to the Board.
- 3. The Board shall establish in writing the operational guidelines (Terms of Reference) for each committee.
- Unless a committee is given written notice of a budget or authority to expend funds, the committee has
 no authority to expend Society funds or bind the Society to a financial commitment.
- Unless a committee is given written authority to the contrary, the committee does not have the authority to bind the Society to any decision or undertaking. If a committee is authorized to bind the Society, the authorization must be clear and the committee must operated within the limited authority granted.

XV. Execution of certain documents:

All contracts, financial and legal documents must be signed by the officers of the Society or other directors as authorized to do so by motion of the Board.

XVI. Society Funds:

- The funds of the Society, however derived, shall not be expended for any objects inconsistent with those of the Society or authorized by the Act.
- The funds shall be deposited to the credit of the Society in a chartered bank or other institution as directed by the Board.
- 3. Investment of Society funds must be in accordance with the Trustee Act.
- 4. Cheques of the Society shall be signed by any two (2) of the following:
 - a. The President (orchairperson)

- c. A Vice-President (or vicechairperson)
- d. A Second Vice-President (or Second Vice chairperson)
- c. The Treasurer
- 5. Signing Authorities are authorized to disperse funds up to but no greater than \$100,000 per transaction without Membership approval.

XVII. Borrowing by the Society:

- 1. The Society may for the purpose of carrying out its objects or for capital purposes, from time to time borrow money and from time to time issue notes, bonds, debentures and other securities.
- 2. The Board may not borrow more than \$100,000 without the authorization of the members of the Society.

XVIII. Fiscal Year:

The fiscal year of the Society is the year beginning on October 1 and ending on the following September 31.

XIX. Auditor:

- 1. No person holding office in or employed by the Society is eligible to be appointed as the auditor of or to perform any of the duties of the auditor of the Society.
- 2. The auditor is to be appointed by resolution passed at an annual meeting of the Society or at a special general meeting of the Society called for that purpose.
- 3. The auditor must be a member in good standing of an association of accountants recognized by the Director.

XX. Financial Statements:

1. The financial statement referred to in Section III of the bylaws in accordance with the Act must be a review engagement report or audit report prepared by a professional accounting firm in accordance with Part 3 of the Chartered Professional Accountants Act.

XXI. Membership:

- 1. A person may become a member of the Society if that person pays the membership fee and is interested in the objectives of the Society.
- 2. Subject to subsection XXI(1), a person who is 18 years of age or older may become a voting member of the Society.
- 3. Subject to subsection XXI(1), a corporation may be a member of the Society.
- 4. Where a corporation becomes a member of the Society, the corporation must, in accordance with subsection XXI(1), furnish the Society with a designation of a person who is to be the corporation's representative with the right to attend meetings of the Society, to vote, and to be an eligible director.
- 5. Payment of the membership fee entitles the person, firm or company paying it to the privileges of membership for the year of which the fee is paid.
- 6. A person under the age of 18 may become a non-voting member

7. A designation under subsection XXI(4)

- a. Must be in a form acceptable to the Society:
- b. Must be furnished to the Society at the time the membership fee is paid, and;
- c. May be changed from time to time by a like designation.
- 8. The Board reviews and determines membership fees by motion of the Board.
- At the time a Special Meeting of the society is called no memberships may be sold until the business of the Special Meeting is concluded.

XXII. Register of members:

- The society shall keep a register of its members containing the names of the persons who applied to form
 the society and the name of every other person who is admitted as a member of the society, together with
 the following particulars of each person:
 - a. the full name and mailing address;
 - b. valid email address
 - c. the date on which the person is admitted as a member;
 - d. the date on which the person ceases to be a member;
 - e. the class of membership of the person, if the society has classes of members.
- The society shall, within a reasonable time of receiving a request for it from a member of the society, provide to the member a copy of the register, the annual list of members or an excerpt from either or both of them.
- The society may disclose the register or an annual list of members or an excerpt of either or both of them
 to a member of the society only if the information contained in the register, list or excerpt is to be used by
 the member for matters relating to the affairs of the society.
- A member of the society may use personal information about another member of the society that is contained in the register, list or excerpt for any matter not referred to in subsection (3) if that other member gives consent to that use.
- Any Changes to Board members between AGM must be provide to Alberta Agriculture and Forestry within 30 days of the change.

XXIII. Suspension of Membership:

- 1. The Board, at a special meeting of the Board called for that purpose, may suspend a member's membership not more than one (1) year, for one or more of the following reasons:
 - a. if the member has failed to abide by the bylaws;
 - b. if the member has been disloyal to the Society;
 - c. if the member has disrupted meetings or functions of the Society; or
 - d. if the member has done or filed to do anything judged to be harmful to the Society.
 - e. Violation of the Societies Code of Conduct.
- The affected member will receive written notice of the Board's intention to deal with whether that member should be suspended or not. The member will receive at least two (2) weeks notice before the special meeting.
- The notice will be sent by single registered mail to the last known address of the member shown in the records of the Society. The notice may also be delivered by an officer of the Board.

- 4. The notice will state the reasons why the suspension is being considered.
- 5. The member will have an opportunity to appear before the Board to address the matter. The Board may allow another person to accompany the member.
- 6. The Board will determine how the matter will be dealt with and may limit the time given the member to address the Board.
- 7. The Board may exclude the member from its discussion of the matter, including the deciding vote.
- 9. The decision of the Board is final.
- 10. Board members whose membership has been suspended will no longer sit on the Board and will not be eligible for election or appointment to the board until the AGM following the end of suspension.

XXIV. Termination of Membership:

- Any member may resign from the Society by sending or delivering a written notice to the secretary or president of the Society. Once notice is received, the member's name is removed from the membership register.
- 2. The membership of a member is ended upon their death.
- 3. If a member has not paid the annual membership fees within three (3) months following the date the fees are due, the Member is considered to have submitted their resignation.
- 4. The Society may, by Special Resolution, at a special general meeting called for that purpose, expel any member for any cause which is deemed sufficient and in the best interests of the Society. The decision of the membership final.
- 5. No right or privilege of any member is transferable to another person.
- 6. Although a member ceases to be a member, they are liable for any debts owing to the Society at the date of ceasing to be a member.

XXV. Security:

- The Society shall at all times maintain theft insurance or fidelity insurance against loss or damage caused by employees, officers, and directors.
- The Society shall at all times maintain general liability insurance in an amount not less than \$2,000,000
 inclusive per occurrence (insuring against personal injury and property damage (including loss of use of
 property).
- 3. In this section "theft insurance", "fidelity insurance", and "general liability insurance" have the meaning given to them by the *Classes of Insurance Regulation* (AR 121/2001).
- 4. The Society shall at all times maintain directors and officer's liability insurance.
- 5. No member is, in their individual capacity, liable for any debt or liability of the Society.

XXVI. Amendments to the Bylaws:

- At the annual meeting of the Society or at a Special Meeting and Special Resolution called for that purpose, the members of the Society may make, alter and repeal bylaws for the general management of the Society.
- 2 signed copies of the approved amended bylaws will be sent to the Agricultural Society Program, Alberta Agriculture and Forestry (AF) for their approval and acceptance.
- 3. New or amended bylaws are not valid until approved by the Director.

4. The bylaws shall be reviewed annually by the Board prior to the next annual meeting and any changes approved by the membership at the annual meeting, or a special meeting called for that purpose.

XXVII. Parliamentary Authority:

The rules contained in the current edition of *Roberts Rules of Order Newly Revised* shall govern the Society in all cases to which they are applicable and in which they are not inconsistent with these bylaws and any special rules of order the Society may adopt.

XXVIII. Dissolution of the Society:

- 1. The dissolution of the Society can only take place through Special Resolution.
- 2. On the dissolution of a society, the Director may appoint as liquidator one or more persons to adjust and settle the affairs of the society and for that purpose the persons so appointed have full power to sell and dispose of the assets of the society.
- 3. The property of the society and the proceeds of its sale must be applied;
 - a. first in paying the expenses incurred in liquidating its affairs, including any remuneration of the persons appointed for that purpose as may be fixed by the Director, and
 - b. second in discharging the liabilities of the society to its creditors in full unless the property and proceeds of sale after paying the expenses incurred in liquidating the affairs of the society are not sufficient to discharge its liabilities in full, in which case the funds available shall be distributed among the creditors of the society on a prorated basis in accordance with the respective admitted claims of the creditors.
- 4. If the amount realized on the sale and disposal of the assets of the society is not sufficient to pay the costs of liquidation incurred by the liquidator in liquidating the affairs of the society, the Government shall pay to the liquidator those costs of liquidation that were not met by the amount realized on the sale and disposal of those assets.
- 5. The liquidator shall make a report to the Director as soon as the expenses of the liquidator and the liabilities of the society have been paid and satisfied either fully or on a prorated basis as provided in subsection (3) and at such other times as the Director may require.
- 6. If there is a surplus either in property or money after paying the expenses of liquidation and all the liabilities of the society, the liquidator shall at the time and place, and on the notice and in the manner that the Director directs, call a meeting of all persons who were members of the society immediately before its dissolution, and the meeting, by resolution, may authorize the liquidator to dispose by way of gift of all or any of the surplus to an association or body engaged in community service in the locality in which the society operated.
- 7. IN the event the Cardston Agricultural Society shall be dissolved for any reason All monies/funds owned by the society, including gaming proceeds, shall be handed over/donated to the Cardston Rotary Club, The Cardston Rotary Club is a not for profit organization with a similar Mission Statement to that of the Cardston Agricultural Society and is an advocate and supporter of the Society.
- 8. A surplus that remains in the hands of the liquidator after making a disposition authorized by a resolution passed under subsection (6),
 - a. if it is in money, shall be paid into and form part of the General Revenue Fund, or
 - b. if it is not in money, vests in the Crown in right of Alberta.

XXIX. Code of conduct

- 1. The society shall establish a code of conduct for its members, officers, directors, and employees.
- 2. The code of conduct must include provisions respecting conflicts of interest.
- 3. Every member, officer, director, and employee of a society shall comply with the society's code of conduct.
- Every officer, director and employee of the society shall read the code of conduct and sign an
 acknowledgement that the officer, director, or employee has read and will comply with the code of conduct.
- 5. See appendix 1 and 2

XXX. All Other Matters:

In the event that these regulations do not adequately cover any situation or time of concern to the executive, directors, or members, reference shall be made to the Act which shall be the supreme authority whereby the actions and activities of the Society are managed and controlled.

Acknowledgement of Bylaws

These bylaws and regulations were acknowledged before a general meeting or special meeting called for the purpose of approval of these documents consisting of members of the Cardston Agricultural Society.

Signed before the people at this meeting at Cardston in the Province of Alberta this (12) day of (May), (2022.

President:	Tom Nish		Millien (111)	
Vice-President:	Michael Bevans		SIGNATURE	
Director:	Robin Scotland		SIGNATURE SIGNATURE	
Director:	Terry Duce		SIGNATURE DIARY DUCL	
	PRINT NAME		SIGNATURE	
Date Bylaws last Reviewed with no amendments or changes May 12, 2022				

Appendix 1 Members Code of Conduct

We, the Members of the <u>Cardston</u>	Agricultural Society accept our
individual and collective duty to participate unselfishly.	
We commit to:	
Serve the Agricultural Society by making decisions that bes	t suit the interests of the Agricultural Society and
the community it serves.	
Prepare and participate in order to add value to the organ	ization at all general meetings and functions.
Honour each other during and outside of meetings, appre experience and perspective bring to our organization.	eciating the value and diversity that each other's
Speak positively of the Agricultural Society so that our Boar	d, staff, and the public receive a clear, consistent,
honest message that honours our organization.	
Respect of any information learned during our participatio	n as members.
Avoids conflict of interest by informing the Board whenever	er there is perceived conflict and abstaining from
motions, discussions or decision-making.	
Uphold commitments by understanding the Agricultural S	ocieties bylaws, being informed and supporting
the plans set by the Board, ensuring the objectives of the A	gricultural Society are being accomplished.
Seek excellence by investing in personal and organizational	development and growth
Print Name: _:	
Mailing address:	
Email:	
Phone:	
Date:	
l agree to the members code of conduct.	
Signature of member:	

Page **14** of **15**

Appendix 2

Board and Staff Code of Conduct

Τ.	. The <u>Cardston</u>	Agricultural Society expects their Directors and Employees			
	to conduct themselves in an eti	hical and businesslike manner and to display decorum in group			
	and individual behaviour.				
2.	. Directors and staff should be co	ommitted to the mission & vision statement, the philosophy o			
	the society, know the appropriate policies and be willing to support them externally				
3.	. Board Members must not exert	any individual authority over the Society except as stated in the			
	Ag Society's policies.				
	a. Individual Board Membe	rs do not have any authority to speak for the Society when they			
	interact with staff, the p	ublic, the press and other entities unless granted this authority			
	by the whole Board.				
	b. Board Members must n	ot make any judgements of staff performance except if the			
	performance is officially	assessed against the Society policies.			
4.	Directors and staff are required	to disclose any potential conflict of interest to the Board &			
	refrain from participating in mot	tion, discussion or decisions with respect to those matters			
5.	Directors are expected to attend	d Board meetings and those who are absent from consecutive			
	three (3) meetings in a year will I	have their circumstances reviewed by the Executive Committee			
6.	Immediate family members can	not work in a permanent full time or part time paid position for			
	the Cardston Agricultural Societ	<u>v</u>			
7.	Directors must treat as confidential any information obtained as a Director about the society,				
	including members, employees	including members, employees and volunteers			
8.	Director and staff deal with outside entities or individuals, with clients and staff, and with each				
	other using fair play, ethics and	straightforward communication.			
9.	Directors and staff will not accept	pt tips, gratuities or rewards from any sponsor or contributor.			
	Directors and staff must not part	cicipate in draws or ticket sales.			
:	Signature of Officer, Director or Emp	loyee Date			

Special AGM Meeting May 12,2022 8PM

Location: Cardston Agridome

Attendance: Tom Nish, Micheal Bevans, Terry Duce, John Grainger, Carol Wilson, Frank Bevans, Calin

Duce, LeGrande Bevans,

Shirley Leavitt, Linn Jensen, Shayne Duce, Joel Lybertt, Mianna Bevans, Dixie Bevans.

President Tom Nish called the meeting to order at 8:02pm at this time a quorum was declared.

Terry Duce explained the procedure to review and approve the proposed changes to the Bylaws. Open discussion regarding the changes.

A motion by LeGrande Bevans to approve the By Laws with changes as presented be adopted. John Grainger 2nd the motion

Motion Carried.

The bylaws, minutes and attendance sheet will be mailed as per protocol.

Meeting was adjourned at 8:31pm.

Alch Tom Nish

michege BEVANS

Verry Duce Terry Duce RS 7 Rob Scotland

Cardston Ag Society Special AGM

May 12th, 8:00pm

Signature
Sur /
costs-0
TURB
ABevan
Stewatt
Thatiluce
Telegrande Beyons
DRIMPINA
God Kills
Derry Duce
THE TELLE